
 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Standards Committee 

 
 

Date: Friday 13 December 2013 

Time: 9.30 am 

Place: Judge's Room - Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Sarah Claridge, Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252402 

Email: sclaridge@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement. 
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and 
at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair   
 

Vice Chair   

 
 Councillor James Fry  

 Councillor Michael Gotch  

 Councillor Susanna Pressel  

 Councillor Gwynneth Royce  

 Councillor Gill Sanders  

 Councillor Val Smith  

 Councillor Dick Wolff  

 

 Chris Ballinger Independent Person 

 Godfrey Cole Independent Person 

 Jill McCleery Independent Person 

 Ben Simpson Independent Person 

 

 Gordon Roper Blackbird Leys Parish Council 

 
 
 
The quorum for this Committee is 3, substitutes are permitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
  Pages 

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2013/14 

 

 

 The Standards Committee elects Councillor …. to be the Chair for the 
Council Year 2013/14. 

 

 

2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR THE COUNCIL YEAR 2013/14 

 

 

 The Standards Committee elects Councillor …. to be the Vice Chair for the 
Council Year 2013/14. 

 

 

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 

5 UPDATE ON ETHICAL STANDARDS ISSUES. 

 

1 - 4 

 The Head of Law and Governance has submitted a report to update the 
Committee on Standards matters 
 
Officer recommendation: That the Committee note the report. 

 

 

6 MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT - 2013/14 REVIEW OF THE 

OXFORDSHIRE CODE. 

 

5 - 26 

 The Head of Law and Governance has submitted a report which presents the 
findings of a joint review of the Oxfordshire Code.  
 
Officer recommendation: That the findings of the joint review be accepted 
and that Council be recommended to make no changes to the Oxfordshire 
Code. 

 

 

7 MINUTES 

 

27 - 32 

 Minutes from 14 December 2012 and 27 February 2013 
 
Recommendation: That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 
2012 be APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 
 
Recommendation: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 
2013 be APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 

 

 

 

8 DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  



 
  
 

 

 

 9 March 2012 

 

 

 



 

 

DECLARING INTERESTS 

 

General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
To:  Standards Committee    
 
Date: 13 December 2013    

 
Report of:  Head of Law and Governance 
 
Title of Report:  Update on Ethical Standards Issues. 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To provide an update report to the Committee. 
      
Report Approved by:  
 
Legal: Jeremy Thomas 
 
Finance: Nigel Kennedy 
 
Policy Framework:  None 
 
Recommendation:  That the Committee note the report. 
 

 
Introduction 
 

1. This report updates the Committee on several issues concerned with 
the operation of the ethical standards regime within the Authority. 

 
Register of Interests 
 

2. All City Councillors have been remindedof the opportunity to re-fresh 
their registerof interests. The register of interests is published on the 
Council’s website. 

 
Councillor TrainingGenerally 
 

3. The Members Allowances Scheme requires every councillor to attend 
Code of Conduct training, annually, to refresh their knowledge of the 
Code and their responsibilities as Members. Failure to attend Code 
training results in a member being ‘docked’ 15% of their basic 
allowance until such time as training is undertaken.  The requirement 
also applies to members who sit on planning and licensing committees. 
All Members attended the required training and as a consequence no 
Member had their allowance ‘docked’. 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

1



 

 

4. Council has agreed a draft programme of meetings for 2014/15 which 
includes 3 days set aside for new Member induction ( half of the City 
Council seats are up for election in May 2014). 

 
Code of Conduct Training 
 

5. All councillors attended code training in 2013, which was expanded to 
include an explanation of freedom of information and data protection 
issues as they applied to Councillors. Code training was also offered to 
parish councils with Blackbird Leys Parish Council taking up the offer 
and receiving the training. 
 

6. In total the Monitoring Officer delivered 5separate training sessions for 
City Councillors - half the number of training session as last year.  

 
Planning and Licensing Training 
 

7. Planning and licensing training was attended by all new Members and 
appointees to either planning or licensing committees.  Next year 
Officers propose a series of licencing training sessions be run in-house 
rather than the externally run, one day session currently offered. This is 
designed to be a more flexible arrangement. 

 
Independent Persons Workshop 
 

8. Ben Simpsonattended an Independent Person’s workshop in 
November and will update the committee at the meeting. 

 
Annual Report 2012/13 
 

9. The Committee on Standards in Public Life published its Annual Report 
2012/13 in August 2013. An extract on standards in local government is 
attached as Appendix 1. 

 
Financial Implications 

 
10. There are no financial implications in connection with the 

recommendation in this report. 
 
Recommendation 
 

11. That the Committee note the report. 
 
Name and contact details of author: 
Sarah Claridge  
Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
Tel: 01865 252402 
E-mail: sclaridge@oxford.gov.uk 

2



APPENDIX 1 

Extract from Committee on Standards in Public Life Annual Report 2012-13 
 
Local government standards  
 
Under the Localism Act 2011 the new local government standards regime came into 
effect on 1 July 2012. The Committee welcomed the introduction of a mandatory 
requirement for local authorities to adopt a local code of conduct based on the Seven 
Principles of Public Life and the intention to encourage a greater sense of local 
responsibility for standards and to reduce the number of vexatious complaints.  
 
While we recognise that the new system needs time to properly bed in, we do, 
however, have certain concerns:  

• Due to the emphasis on local ownership of standards we would expect the 
new regime, like the previous one, to function well in those areas where party 
leaders are prepared to provide the necessary leadership and example1. It is 
likely to do less well where such leadership is inadequate. History suggests 
that problems are most likely in areas with monolithic political cultures and 
correspondingly little political challenge, where partisan rivalry is most bitter 
and tit-for-tat accusations most common, or in those predominantly rural 
areas with significant numbers of independent members without the benefit of 
party discipline.  

 

• Under the previous arrangements local authorities and an independent 
tribunal had the power to suspend members for varying periods of time as a 
sanction against poor behaviour. The only sanctions now available, apart from 
through the use of a political party’s internal discipline procedures are censure 
or criminal prosecution for deliberately withholding or misrepresenting a 
financial interest. We do not think these are sufficient. The last few years have 
seen a number of examples of inappropriate behaviour which would not pass 
the strict tests required to warrant a criminal prosecution, but which deserves 
a sanction stronger than simple censure. While censure may carry 
opprobrium in the political arena it is often considered unacceptably lenient by 
the public relative to other areas of their experience. Coercion of other 
members or officers is one category of offence with which it will be difficult to 
deal adequately under the new arrangements.  

 

• Under the previous arrangements allegations about poor behaviour were 
determined by standards committees independently chaired by individuals 
who were not themselves members of the local authority. Under the new 
arrangements every local authority must appoint at least one independent 
person whose views it will seek, and take into account, before making its 
decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate. We doubt that this 
will be sufficient to provide assurance that justice is being done and, equally 
important, that it is seen to be done.  

 

• In the transition to the new system local authorities may have lacked proper 
time to prepare. In early June 2012 we wrote to all local authorities in England 
to ask about their preparations for implementing the new regime which came 
into force on 1 July 2012. The Committee was concerned that so late in the 
day, nearly half of those who responded had yet to adopt a new code and 

3



around four fifths had yet to appoint an independent person. The fact that the 
Regulations and Order which took effect from 1 July were laid only on 6 June 
cannot have helped their preparations.  

 

• While inevitably there have been various teething problems with the new 
regime, the Committee will continue to monitor the implementation and its 
effectiveness, particularly in relation to public confidence that any wrongdoing 
is tackled promptly and transparently in the absence of any external 
investigation and scrutiny. 

 
1 

Not forgetting that in several prominent recent cases it is the behaviour of leaders themselves that 

have been under question 

 
 
 
The full report can be found on 
 
Committee on Standards in Public Life, (2013) Annual Report 2012/13,  
http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/Annual-report-Final-
for-publication-190813.pdf 
 

4



 

 

 

 
 

 
                                                                                     
To: Standards Committee   
 
Date: 13th December 2013          

 
Report of: Head of Law and Governance/Monitoring Officer 
 
Title of Report: Member Code of Conduct - 2013/14 review of the 

Oxfordshire Code 
  

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
 
Purpose of report: To present the findings of a joint review of the Oxfordshire 
Code. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Nigel Kennedy 
 
Legal: Jeremy Thomas. 
 
Policy Framework: Not applicable. 
 
Recommendation(s): That the findings of the joint review be accepted 
and that Council be recommended to make no changes to the 
Oxfordshire Code. 
 
 
 

 
Introduction 

 
1. The Principal Councils in Oxfordshire (i.e. Oxfordshire County Council, 

Cherwell District Council, Oxford City Council, West Oxfordshire District 

Council, South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse 

District Council) adopted a common Code of Conduct for Members to take 

effect on the 1st July 2012. That was a ‘local’ Code, drafted by the 

Monitoring Officers from each of the Principal Councils and adopted in 

response to the changes to the ethical standards regime within local 

authorities made by the Localism Act 2011. That Code (‘the Oxfordshire 

Code’) has also been adopted by the vast majority of Parish Councils 

within Oxfordshire. I attach as Appendix 1 the Oxfordshire Code. 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

5



 

 

 

Background 

 

2. Prior to the Localism Act 2011, the Local Government Act 2000 had 

established a duty on local authorities to promote and maintain high 

standards of conduct by elected Members. The framework provided by the 

2000 Act in pursuit of that overarching duty included a national statutory 

Code, local Standards Committees (chaired by and including voting 

independent Members), the Standards Board for England and a national 

Tribunal. The framework also provided a range of potential sanctions 

including, crucially, suspension by Standards Committees and 

disqualification by the national Tribunal 

 

3. The Localism Act 2011 retained the overarching duty on local Authorities 

to promote and maintain high standards of conduct but repealed the 

entirety of the framework except for the duty to adopt a Code of Conduct 

(but with discretion as to its content unlike the previous mandatory Code). 

That Act also introduced new criminal offences in respect of the non- 

registration or declaration of pecuniary interests. 

4. The adoption of the Oxfordshire Code was undoubtedly a sensible course 

of action. It was desirable for its own sake but has considerable practical 

benefits for dual and triple hatted Members. It is also less likely to cause 

public confusion as to the standards of conduct expected of different 

elected representatives within a common administrative area. 

 

The review of the Code 

5. The Monitoring Officers from each Authority (‘the MO group’) have carried 

out a joint review of the Oxfordshire Code. All aspects of the Code have 

been considered but the review has particularly focussed on the issue of 

non-pecuniary interests, or as the Localism Act describes them, ‘interests 

other than pecuniary interests’. 

 

6. In the absence of a national mandatory Code, a number of advisory drafts 

have been published by bodies including the Local Government 

Association and the Department for Communities and Local Government. 

The various drafts differ greatly. The Oxfordshire Code has, in the view of 

the MO group, steered a sensible middle path between the competing 

draft Codes which are either inadequate (as a reaction against the 

repealed national Code) or ‘gold plated’ (an attempt to retain the repealed 

national Code). 

 

 

6



 

 

7. The requirement in the Localism Act is that the adopted Code must be 

consistent with the principles of public life, that is selflessness, integrity, 

objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. In addition 

each Council must “secure that its code of conduct includes the provision 

the authority considers appropriate in respect of the registration in its 

register, and disclosure, of (a) pecuniary interests, and (b) interests other 

than pecuniary interests.” It is clear from this section that each Authority 

has discretion as to whether it considers it appropriate to require the 

disclosure and registration of non-pecuniary interests within its Code. This 

report considers that issue and seeks to inform the exercise of that 

discretion by each Authority. 

 

8. The register of interests is maintained and published by the Monitoring 

Officer for each Authority and for the Parish Councils within the 

administrative boundaries of that Authority. The Act provides a definition of 

pecuniary interests by reference to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (‘the Regulations’) and as noted 

above also creates criminal offences in respect of their non-disclosure or 

registration. 

 

9. The Regulations specify seven classes of pecuniary interests, namely 

employment/office/trade/profession/vocation, sponsorship, contracts, land, 

licences, corporate tenancies and securities. The clear distinction between 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests was not a feature of the previous 

national Code. That Code drew, instead, a distinction between personal 

and prejudicial interests.  

10. It is important to note what the consequences are/were for each type of 

interest. Under the former Code the existence of a personal interest 

merely required the declaration of it. Once declared, the Member was 

entitled to participate in any debate and vote. A prejudicial interest (which 

was a personal interest that could reasonably be regarded as so 

significant as to affect the Member’s assessment of the public interest) 

required the Member to withdraw from the meeting and thereby not 

participate in any debate or vote. Under the Oxfordshire Code (consistent 

with requirements of the Localism Act) the existence of a disclosable 

pecuniary interest similarly requires withdrawal and non-participation. 

 

The issue of non-pecuniary interests 

 

11. The Localism Act represented a fundamental shift for the ethical standards 

regime in relation to Member interests. Parliament decided to create a 

class of interests (pecuniary) which were to be enforced by way of criminal 

prosecutions.  The local complaint handling arrangements adopted by 

7



 

 

principal Councils for allegations of breaches of the Code only provide for 

the sanction of ‘naming and shaming’. Against that backdrop the MO 

group have concluded that their collective advice in relation to the 

Oxfordshire Code is that it should not be revised so as to require 

Members to disclose non-pecuniary interests. To introduce such a 

requirement ( and to therefore invite complaints of non-declaration of 

interests within a statutory complaint handling process that does not have 

robust sanctions) is, in the view of the MO group, not a sensible use of 

public resources. The absence of such a requirement also means that the 

non-declaration of a personal interest would not create a free standing 

ground for judicial review against the Authorities (beyond the existing 

common law ground of actual or apparent bias). In relation to that final 

point it is important that the Code neither strays into issues of bias or into 

the jurisdictional boundaries of judicial review - a Code of Conduct is not a 

sufficiently flexible, comprehensive or indeed appropriate mechanism for 

acting as a check and balance on the discharge of functions by local 

authorities( which was one of the problems with the use and abuse of the 

previous Code). The MO group intend to produce common guidance for 

the Oxfordshire Authorities to assist Members with the issue of apparent or 

actual bias. 

 

12. It is vitally important to note however that the absence of a requirement 

within the Oxfordshire Code to declare non-pecuniary interests does not 

mean that Members are precluded from registering and declaring 

such interests. The experience of the MO group within their respective 

Authorities is that Members are keen to declare such interests or 

associations as they think might be relevant. Each Authority has or will 

introduce an amended register of interests form so as to provide a 

dedicated space within the form to allow Members to declare 

whatever non-pecuniary interests or associations that they wish. It is 

this form that each Authority publishes and this will therefore provide 

Members with the means by which non-pecuniary interests may be 

declared publicly by them. 

 

13. There is one further difficulty with requiring registration of non-pecuniary 

interests over and above the lack of any robust sanction and reducing the 

risk of misconceived judicial reviews for failure to declare and that is how 

should non-pecuniary interests be defined? In undertaking to observe a 

Code of Conduct, Members should expect to be able to understand clearly 

and precisely what is expected of them. A precise definition would 

therefore be required but there is no accepted norm within society 

generally of where those precise boundaries are. It is only in respect of 

pecuniary interests that we have a precise definition (through the 

Regulations).  

8



 

 

 

14. In undertaking to observe a Code of Conduct, Members should expect to 

be able to understand clearly and precisely what is expected of them. A 

precise definition would therefore be required but there is no accepted 

norm within society generally of where those precise boundaries are. It is 

only in respect of pecuniary interests that we have a precise definition 

(through the Regulations).  

 

15. The former Code included as a type of personal interest the receipt of gifts 

or hospitality of at least the value of £25. The MO group have considered 

whether a requirement to register and declare gifts and hospitality should 

be introduced into the Oxfordshire Code. The MO group consider that 

such a requirement should not be introduced as it would elevate one type 

of interest under the former Code over all others. In addition, there is a 

category of disclosable pecuniary interest which is designed to capture the 

carrying on of an office or vocation for profit or gain.  

 

16. As noted in Paragraph 7 above the Oxfordshire Code is required to be 

consistent with certain principles. Although not described as such by the 

Localism Act the principles are commonly known as the ‘Nolan Principles’.  

Attached as Appendix 2 is the latest expression of those principles. The 

shaded text is the wording from the Oxfordshire Code describing each of 

the principles for comparison. Although the text is not identical the drafting 

of the Oxfordshire Code compares favourably and the view of the MO 

group is that the Oxfordshire Code remains consistent with the Nolan 

Principles. 

 

17. In September 2013 the Government published a revised guide for 

Councillors entitled ‘Openness and Transparency on Personal Interests’. I 

attach a copy as Appendix 3.  The guidance suggested that mere 

membership of a Trade Union would always need to be registered. This is 

not a requirement of the Oxfordshire Code. The view of the MO group is 

that no amendment is required as the Regulations deal satisfactorily with 

the point. The Regulations explicitly provide that sponsorship includes “any 

payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the 

Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992”. This means 

that sponsorship by a trade union will be a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Mere membership of a trade union is not a pecuniary interest as it is the 

sponsorship, not the membership, which is the interest. 

 

 

 

 

 

9



 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

18. The MO group have therefore concluded that no changes are required to 

be made to the Oxfordshire Code for the moment save for the introduction 

of a revised register of interests form so as to facilitate the voluntary 

registration of non-pecuniary interests. The MO group will, of course, keep 

the Oxfordshire Code under periodic review. 

 
 

Name and contact details of author:  
 
Jeremy Thomas 
Head of Law & Governance 
Oxford City Council 
Town Hall 
St. Aldate’s  
Oxford   OX1 1BX 
 
Tel: 01865 252224 
Email jjthomas@oxford.gov.uk   

 
Background papers: None 
 

10



11



12



13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Friday 14 December 2012 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Fry, Gotch, Pressel, Royce, Sanders, 
Wolff and Kennedy. 
 
 
ADVISORY MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Ballinger (Independent Member), Jill 
McCleery (Independent Member) and Ben Simpson (Independent Member) 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Jeremy Thomas (Head of Law and Governance) and 
Sarah Claridge (Trainee Democratic and Electoral Services Officer) 
 
 
1. WELCOME 
 
The Monitoring Officer welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Committee 
following the coming into force, on the 1st July 2012, of the new Standards 
arrangements under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Val Smith (substitute Councillor Pat 
Kennedy) and Godfrey Cole (Independent Person). 
 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 
 
4. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that unlike the previous statutory Standards 
arrangements which required, by law, the Committee to be chaired by an 
‘Independent Member’ the present arrangements did not require that or indeed 
require the formation of a Standards Committee at all. The Council had, 
however, appointed the Committee in order to deal with complaints of breaches 
of the locally adopted Code of Conduct but the Committee could only be chaired 
by an elected Member as the ‘Independent Persons’ only had an advisory role 
within the new arrangements and were not voting Members of the Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved to appoints Councillor Gill Sanders as Chair and 
Councillor Michael Gotch as Vice-Chair of the Standards Committee for 2012/13. 
 
 
5. POWERS AND DUTIES OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
The Monitoring Officer introduced the Standards Committee’s terms of reference 
for 2012/13 as resolved by Council in May 2012.  
 

Agenda Item 7

27



 

There was a discussion over whether the Committee’s quorum should be 3 (as 
resolved by Council) or 5. There was concern that if the quorum was only 3, that 
political proportionality might not be achieved.  However because the Committee 
is now allowed substitute members this will maintain political proportionality. The 
Committee still felt that 3 Members was too low a quorum and felt 5 a more 
suitable number. 
 
Councillor Royce queried whether it was wise having two Members from one 
family on the Committee. But as both are elected members, Members did not 
see a problem with it.  
 
Councillor Royce felt that as a member of the Committee she had not been kept 
well informed about the current investigation. She queried why the investigation 
was taking so long? The Monitoring Officer explained that formal investigations 
never provide speedy resolutions and his role was to ensure that everyone had 
correct information so that a decision based on evidence could be reached. 
Progress was being made with the investigation, the Independent Persons are 
meeting next week and the case will be determined in January. 
 
The Committee noted its terms of reference. 
 
The Committee wished to recommend to Council that the quorum of the 
Standards Committee for 2012/13 be amended to 5 members.  
 
 
6. APPOINTMENT OF PARISH COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that Council, in establishing the Committee, had 
resolved to appoint one Parish Council representative to the Committee to 
represent the four Parish Councils 
 
Officers had invited the four Parish Councils to nominate a single representative 
but each Parish Council had nominated a Member so the Committee had four 
nominees. 
 
The nominees were: 
 
Fred Mogridge – Littlemore PC 
Nils Bartlett – Old Marston PC 
Julia Gasper – Risinghurst and Sandhills PC 
Gordon Roper – Blackbird Leys PC 
 
The Monitoring Officer suggested to the Committee that because Fred Mogridge 
and Neil Bartlett had both served full terms on the previous Standards 
Committee that the appointment should be made from one of the other Parish 
Councils.  
 
The Committee took into consideration the length of service of the remaining 
nominees and noting that Gordon Roper had served as a Parish Councillor for a 
considerably longer period than Julia Gasper agreed to recommend to Council 
that Gordon Roper be co-opted as the non - voting Parish Council 
representative. 
 
 

28



 

7. UPDATE REPORT ON COUNCIL'S STANDARDS MATTERS 
 
The Monitoring Officer presented the report outlining the progress made in 
collecting Members’ declarations of interest forms, the Members’ training 
programme and the appointment of Independent Persons. 
 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that two Members had yet to return their 
declaration of interest forms and one had not attended code of conduct training 
and had subsequently had their allowance reduced. The Committee felt that the 
relevant Group Leader(s) should be informed so that they could raise the issue 
with the Member(s) involved. 
 
The Committee was assured that all Committee Members had returned their 
declaration forms and attended code training. 
 
The Committee thanked the Independent Persons for volunteering their time to 
take on the role. 
 
The Committee resolved to NOTE the report Update on Council’s Standards 
Matters. 
 
 
8. DECISION MAKING - PRE-DETERMINATION AND BIAS 
 
The Monitoring Officer presented the advice note to all Members on the issue of 
pre-determination and bias. The note had originated from a query from a Chair of 
a Planning Committee.  
 
The Chair advised Members to contact the Monitoring Officer if they had any 
comments on the draft advice note, before it was issued to all Members. 
 
 
9. MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE 
 
The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee that they were required to hold a 
hearing in relation to a complaint which had been the subject of an investigation. 
This will be held at 10am, on the 16 January 2013 in the Judges Room of the 
Town Hall. The press and public will be excluded from the hearing but the 
Committee will publish a decision notice. 
 
The Committee will receive the investigation report and written advice from the 
Independent Persons at least 5 clear days before the meeting date. 
 
 
10. MINUTES 
 
The Committee resolved to APPROVE the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
April 2012 as a true and accurate record. 
 
 
11. DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Committee agreed that they should meet 6 monthly and that the next 
meeting will be held at 10am on Friday 7 June 2013. 

29



 

 
 
 
The meeting started at 9.35 am and ended at 10.10 am 

30



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday 27 February 2013 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Sanders (Chair), Gotch (Vice-Chair), 
Fry, Pressel, Royce, Wolff and Sinclair. 
 
 
ADVISORY MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Ballinger (Independent Person), Jill 
McCleery (Independent Person), Ben Simpson (Independent Person) and 
Gordon Roper (Blackbird Leys Parish Council) 
 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Jeremy Thomas (Head of Law and Governance) and 
Sarah Claridge (Trainee Democratic and Electoral Services Officer) 
 
 
16. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Val Smith (substitute Councillor Dee 
Sinclair) and Godfrey Cole. 
 
 
17. MINUTES 
 
The Committee resolved to APPROVE the confidential and non-confidential 
minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2013 as a true and accurate record. 
 
 
18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
19. DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Committee resolved to NOTE that the next meeting will be held at 10am on 
Friday 7 June 2013. 
 
 
 
20. MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 
The Committee resolved to EXCLUDE the press and the public from the meeting 
to protect the privacy of the individuals involved, in accordance with Paragraph 1 
(Information relating to any individual) and Paragraph 2 (Information which is 
likely to reveal the identity of an individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 
 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption is recommended to be so that 
discussions and deliberations of the Committee about the investigation are not 
compromised and so that the confidentiality of personal information collected 
during the investigation is protected.  
 

31



 

 
21. STANDARDS INVESTIGATION - 703/4/39 
 
The Committee considered a report by the Monitoring Officer (previously 
circulated, now appended) attached to which was the final report and relevant 
documents prepared by the Investigating Officer appointed to investigate the 
alleged conduct of Councillor Alan Armitage. 
 
The investigator presented his report before members of the Committee asked 
questions of him.  The Committee also heard from a number of witnesses who 
attended the hearing at the request of the investigator. Both the Committee and 
Councillor Armitage questioned those witnesses. Councillor Armitage made oral 
submissions, which were also followed by questions from the Committee.  The 
Committee also sought and received advice from the Independent Persons. 
 
Having considered all of the above advice, evidence and submissions the 
Committee made a finding of fact that it was highly probable that Councillor 
Armitage did make an inappropriate comment to one of the members of the 
under 13s sports team. 
 
The Committee resolved that the remark was inappropriate and disrespectful 
and therefore amounted to a breach of paragraph 3(1) of the Code (treating 
others with respect). 
 
As the Lord Mayor attended the Awards Evening in his official capacity the 
Committee also concluded that the inappropriate remark had brought both the 
office of Lord Mayor and the City Council into disrepute. The Committee 
therefore decided that there had been a breach of paragraph 5 (you must not 
conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing 
your office or authority into disrepute) of the Code. 
 
The Committee resolved that Councillor Armitage should be censured for the 
breach of the Code and that the Committee’s decision be reported to all 
members of Council.  The Committee concurred with the advice of the 
Independent Persons that there was no reason why Councillor Armitage should 
not continue to undertake the full range of his mayoral duties and noted that 
Councillor Armitage had given an indication that he would do so.  
 
The full Decision Notice and redacted Investigation report is attached under 
decision. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 2.00 pm 

32


	Agenda
	5 Update on Ethical Standards Issues.
	Appendix 1_Extract from Committee on Standards in Public Life Annual Report 2012

	6 Member Code of Conduct - 2013/14 review of the Oxfordshire Code.
	Appendix 1 _ code of conduct
	Appendix 2_ Nolan Principles
	Appendix 3_DCLG guidance

	7 Minutes
	Minutes , 27/02/2013 Standards Committee


